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Foreword

For many years now the recording and protection afforded to the historic environment has
been bound within the provisions of a number legislative Acts of Parliament. Indeed, the Vale
of Glamorgan has over 100 Scheduled Ancient Monuments, over 700 Listed Buildings and 38
Conservation Areas that are afforded statutory protection by legislation.

However, this system of statutory recognition, by its nature, only takes account of items of
exceptional significance. Often there are locally important buildings that although
acknowledged not to be of ‘national’ or ‘exceptional’ importance, are considered key
examples of vernacular architecture or buildings, which have an important local history. Itis
these buildings which are often the main contributors to local distinctiveness, but which have
to date, remained un-surveyed and afforded little recognition or protection.

The original County Treasures project was published by the then South Glamorgan County
Council in the late 1970’s. It was conceived as a locally adopted inventory of ‘special
features’ in the former County area.

However, as a result of local government restructuring, the changes to local authority
boundaries, as well as changes in responsibilities and funding mechanisms the survey was
never completed, and as a consequence was not comprehensive in its coverage.

In the three decades that have passed since the original survey was attempted, the loss of a
number of local buildings and landmarks, and the redevelopment of unprotected sites make
the County Treasures project as relevant today as it was then. This publication is the
culmination of the efforts of many individuals and groups who have been generously giving of
their knowledge, time and commitment over a nearly ten year period, and without whom the
County Treasures project would never have been possible. To all those involved, | extend my
heart felt thanks in recognition of a job well done.

We should be proud, therefore, that this version of the County Treasures survey is complete,
robust and comprehensive. It is in another respect even more valuable than its predecessor,
in that this Inventory has not been compiled by the local authority, but by the communities of
the Vale themselves.

Each of the 27 community areas within the Vale were surveyed by a volunteer workforce of
local people, teachers, history society members, local Councillors and other interested
individuals, who gave willingly and freely of their time to reveal and record the very many
items that could conceivably be of architectural and historic interest; and which, further to
detailed scrutiny, research and qualification, were considered worthy of inclusion. This
inventory, therefore, more than any other provides an account of what is considered of local
importance by local people.

The complete Treasures Inventory contains some 1200 entries. It contains a schedule giving
the name of each treasure, its description, its current means of statutory protection (where
relevant), a grid reference, map and photograph.

This 2007 Inventory should not however be seen as a ‘final product’, and although it indeed
provides an excellent account and record at a fixed point in time, it also provides a framework
for future additions and amendments, as more or new buildings become apparent, new
information or change occurs.



It is hoped that the Vale of Glamorgan County Treasures Inventory will serve several
purposes:
o |t will stimulate local, and wider interest, and promote care and maintenance of
identified treasures.
e It will act as a valuable educational resource, perhaps allowing local schoolchildren to
research locally as well as nationally significant events and buildings.
o |t will ensure that treasures are fully regarded in the planning process where they are
threatened by development pressures.
o |t will stimulate protectionist policies within forthcoming development plans and
perhaps the recognition of further areas for statutory designation.

The Vale of Glamorgan Council, Cadw, The Civic Trust for Wales, The Penarth Society, and
The Vale Council for Voluntary Services have supported this project.

Every attempt has been made to ensure that this document is as accurate as possible. The survey was undertaken
between 2002 and 2007.

All content is © copyright of the Vale of Glamorgan Council and all rights are reserved.

All maps are © Crown copyright and all rights are reserved. Published by the Vale of Glamorgan Council under
Licence No. 100023424 2007.



Rhagair

Ers llawer o flynyddoedd bellach, mae'r gwaith o gofnodi ac amddiffyn yr amgylchedd
hanesyddol yn cael ei reoli o dan amodau nifer o ddeddfau seneddol. Mae dros 100 o
Henebion Rhestredig, dros 700 o Adeiladau Rhestredig a 38 o Ardaloedd Cadwraeth ym Mro
Morgannwg sy’n cael eu hamddiffyn o dan y gyfraith yn y modd yma.

Serch hynny, mae’n anochel bod system fel hon sydd wedi'i seilio ar gydnabyddiaeth
statudol, yn rhoi ystyriaeth i eitemau o bwysigrwydd eithriadol yn unig. Mae hynny’n golygu
bod llawer o adeiladau lleol sydd, er nad oes ganddynt unrhyw statws cenedlaethol nac
eithriadol, yn dal yn nodedig am eu pensaerniaeth frodorol neu’'n bwysig i hanes yr ardal. Yn
amlach na pheidio, dyma’r union adeiladau sy’'n rhoi cymeriad i ardal er na ddaeth neb i'w
hadolygu erioed ac nad oes ganddynt fawr o statws na chynlluniau ar gyfer eu gwarchod.

Hen Gyngor Sir De Morgannwg oedd yn gyfrifol am brosiect gwreiddiol Trysorau'r Sir a
gyhoeddwyd ar ddiwedd y 1970au. Bwriad y prosiect oedd llunio rhestr leol o'r holl
nodweddion arbennig rhwng ffiniau’r hen sir.

Serch hynny, bu ad-drefnu llywodraeth leol, newid ffiniau awdurdodau lleol a newid
cyfrifoldebau staff a threfniadau nawdd yn rhwystr i'r gwaith, ac am na chafodd yr arolwg ei
gwblhau erioed, mae'r rhestr yn bell o fod yn gyflawn.

Yn ystod y tri degawd ers cynnal yr arolwg gwreiddiol, mae nifer o adeiladau a nodweddion
lleol amlwg wedi diflannu, a safleoedd diamddiffyn wedi'u datblygu, sy’n golygu bod y prosiect
yn fwy perthnasol heddiw nag erioed. Ffrwyth ymdrech nifer o unigolion a grwpiau ymroddgar
a fu’n rhoi'n hael o’u hamser a’u gwybodaeth am bron i ddeng mlynedd, yw'r cyhoeddiad hwn.
Heb eu cymorth, ni fuasai’n bosibl cynnal prosiect Trysorau’r Sir o gwbl, a hoffwn ddiolch o
galon i bawb am ddod i ben &'r gwaith mor dda.

Mae pob rheswm i ni fod yn falch o'r fersiwn cyflawn, cadarn a chynhwysfawr hwn o’r arolwg
ar Drysorau'’r Sir. Mae’n fwy gwerthfawr fyth na’r un flaenorol hefyd am mai cymunedau’r Fro
eu hunain a fu'n ei lunio’n hytrach na’r awdurdod lleol.

Cafodd pob un o’r 27 cymuned yn y Fro ei hadolygu gan dim gwirfoddol o bobl leol, athrawon,
aelodau cymdeithasau hanesyddol, Cynghorwyr lleol a rhai eraill & diddordeb yn y maes.
Rhoesant yn hael o’'u hamser heb dal er mwyn dod o hyd i'r holl eitemau a allai fod o
ddiddordeb pensaerniol neu hanesyddol, a’'u cofnodi. Cafodd y rhai teilwng eu hychwanegu
at y rhestr ar 6l llawer o waith ymchwil ac archwilio manwl. Dyma’r rhestr felly sy'n
adlewyrchu orau’r eitemau sydd o bwys gan bobl yn eu hardaloedd eu hunain.

Mae 1200 o eitemau i gyd ar y rhestr drysorau gyflawn. Mae pob cofnod yn cynnwys enw’r
eitem, disgrifiad ohoni, y ddarpariaeth sydd ar gael o dan y gyfraith ar gyfer ei gwarchod (pan
fo hynny’n berthnasol), cyfeirnod grid, map a llun.

Serch hynny, ni ddylid ystyried rhestr 2007 yn rhestr gyflawn o bell ffordd. Er ei bod yn
adroddiad ardderchog ar y sefyllfa ar adeg benodol, mae’'n bwysig ei gweld hefyd fel
fframwaith ar gyfer addasu'r rhestr wrth i'r sefyllifa newid neu i adeiladau neu wybodaeth
newydd ddod i'r golwg.



Rydym yn gobeithio y bydd rhestr Trysorau Sir Bro Morgannwg yn:

¢ ennyn diddordeb y gymuned leol a'r gymuned ehangach yn y trysorau hyn ac yn
annog pobl i ofalu amdanynt a’'u cadw mewn cyflwr da.

e helpu'n sylweddol gydag addysg plant ysgol drwy roi cyfle iddynt ymchwilio i
ddigwyddiadau ac adeiladau sydd o bwys lleol yn ogystal & chenedlaethol.

e sicrhau bod pob ystyriaeth yn cael ei rhoi i'r trysorau wrth gynllunio pan fo perygl i
waith datblygu amharu arnynt.

e atgyfnerthu'’r polisiau gwarchod yn y cynlluniau datblygu nesaf a helpu i sicrhau bod
mwy o ardaloedd yn cael eu dynodi’'n statudol.

Mae Cyngor Bro Morgannwg, Cadw, Ymddiriedolaeth Ddinesig Cymru, Cymdeithas Penarth a
Chyngor Gwasanaethau Gwirfoddol y Fro i gyd wedi cefnogi’r prosiect hwn..

Gwnaethpwyd pob ymgais i sicrhau bod y ddogfen hon yn fanwl gywir.

Mae pob map yn cael ei ddiogelu gan hawlfraint y Goron (H) a chedwir pob hawl. Cyhoeddwyd y ddogfen gan
Gyngor Bro Morgannwg o dan Rif Trwyddedu 100023424 2007.
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Photograph Map

Summary description

Community

Treasure Name

The community in which the treasure can be found
The name of the treasure. This is broken down to include the locality,

the street and the individual building where applicable.

Treasure Unique reference number for each treasure.
Reference
Monument Reference number given to scheduled monuments by Cadw.

Listed Building

Reference numbers given to listed buildings by the Vale of Glamorgan

Council and Cadw.

OS Grid The eastings and northings of each treasure.
Photograph A photograph of each treasure.

Map A map of each treasure.

Summary A brief description of each treasure.
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Penarth




‘Penarth

Cogan - Cogan Junction Railway Station - Footbridge

Treasure 552

Monument [ . 0SGridE

Listed Building 13.12.00 [ 13349 0SErid N 1172624

Late C19 cast iron and wrought iron pedestrian bridge over railway line at Cogan station.
Square cast-iron balusters with ball finials; foundry plates ‘George Smith & Co, Glasgow'.
Wrought iron lattice girder rails to stairs and bridge; cast iron handrail. Steps have wooden
treads and cast-iron risers with pierced quatrefoils. At turn of stairs half landing supported
by cast-iron Italianate quattrocento style Corinthian columns on fluted plinths; pierced cast-
iron angle bracing.

‘Penarth

Cogan - Pill Street - Cogan School

Treasure 568

Monument [ . OSGridE
Listed Building |  0SGridN

Playing Field

The original school, now the north wing with its headteacher’s house (now the caretaker’s
house) was opened in 1884. The new school, now the south wing, was opened in 1905 built
of local lias limestone with local yellow brick dressings, all to the design of Harry Snell.
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‘Penarth

Lavernock Road - Former Cement Works (Harvester)

Treasure 883

Monument ~ OSGAdE
Listed Building ' [  0SEridN

Yoy

The former cement works offices built 1890, now a part of a restaurant chain.

‘Penarth ‘

Old Cogan - Cogan Deserted Medieval Village (1 of 3)

Treasure 2297
Monument 7041/GM535 (GLA) ‘ 0SEridE 316935

Listed Building ' [  OSEridN

Cogan village can be traced back to the 12th century when the Church of St Peter was
founded. The number of households recorded in 1673 was seven. The scheduled site
consist of earthwork platforms built to support dwellings, set within crofts or gardens which
line both sides of a sunken track. The remains of at least three hut platforms can be
distinguished along with other features including a possible well or village pond. To the
South of the village was the mill, visible as a pond with a platform beside it at the end of a
long water leat.
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‘Penarth ‘

Old Cogan - Cogan Deserted Medieval Village (2 of 3)

Treasure 2298
Monument 7041/GM535 (GLA) ‘ 0S Grid E 317008

Listed Building ' [  0SGridN

Cogan village can be traced back to the 12th century when the Church of St Peter was
founded. The number of households recorded in 1673 was seven. The scheduled site
consist of earthwork platforms built to support dwellings, set within crofts or gardens which
line both sides of a sunken track. The remains of at least three hut platforms can be
distinguished along with other features including a possible well or village pond. To the
South of the village was the mill, visible as a pond with a platform beside it at the end of a
long water leat.

‘Penarth ‘

Old Cogan - Cogan Deserted Medieval Village (3 of 3)

Treasure - 2299
Monument 7041/GM535 (GLA) 0S GridE 316896

Listed Building [ oS Erid

N>

Cogan village can be traced back to the 12th century when the Church of St Peter was
founded. The number of households recorded in 1673 was seven. The scheduled site
consist of earthwork platforms built to support dwellings, set within crofts or gardens which
line both sides of a sunken track. The remains of at least three hut platforms can be
distinguished along with other features including a possible well or village pond. To the
South of the village was the mill, visible as a pond with a platform beside it at the end of a
long water leat.

16



‘Penarth

Old Cogan - St. Peters Church

Treasure 561

Monument O] | 0SGrdE 316875
Listed Building 13.28.00 [ 13370 0S Grid N 1170568

,,,,,,

—Old Cogan
Hall Feigrm

Ponds

St Peters Church is the oldest in the Penarth area. It is first mentioned in 1185 but the
building goes back to Norman or Saxon times.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Albert Rd - Pillar Box Outside Former Post Office

Treasure 2283
Monument - OSErMdE

Listed Building 13.02.00 [ 13336 0S Brid N 1171870
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Pillar Box which contributes to the overall character of the Penarth Conservation Area and
an excellent example of the use of cast iron technology
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Albert Road - Albert Road Gardens - Telephone Call-
Box

Treasure 2285

Monument [ . 0SGridE

Listed Buiiding ¥/ 13.04.00 13339

E Il R, K6-type square, red kiosk of cast-iron construction to the standard design of Giles
Gilbert Scott, architect of London. Design introduced by GPO in 1936; this example
manufactured by Carron and Company, Stirlingshire.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Albert Road - Albert Road Methodist Church

Treasure 907

Monument ~ OSGAdE

Listed Building —

Opened on May 29th 1907 by John Cory. The church was built to replace the Wesleyan
Church in Arcot Street, built 1863/4 and burned to a shell in March 1905. The shell was
bought by the Anglican church who re-built it as St. Paul’s.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Albert Road - Bellevue

Treasure 906

Monument ~ OSGridE
Listed Building |  0SGridN

Red brick 2 storey former of offices of Penarth Urban District Council. Designed in 1890 by
Havelock E. Cornish. Chateau styled twin turrets provide an attractive roofscape.

‘Penarth ‘

Penarth - Albert Road - Number 41 (Former Post Office)

Treasure 905

Monument [ . 0SGridE

Listed Buiiding ¥/ 13.01.00 13335

Dated 1936; designed by A R Myers. Art Deco style with characteristic horizontal strip
glazing, fluted ornament and wrap-round effect of the rounded corner; the building shows
probable influence of transport related buildings in the London area. At the time of
completion it is likely to have been at the forefront of Post Office design. Single-storey
extension (stylistically in-keeping) 1990.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Albert Road - School

Treasure 908

Monument O] | 0SEridE 318598
Listed Building 13.03.00 [ 13337 0SErdN 172041

’ SUTTIES
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Built in 1876 in Tudor-Gothic style; greatly enlarged in early C20 with some classical detail.
The front blocks are arranged as a U-shaped group with boys and girls Halls and
classrooms separated by the central School House, set back behind front garden. Rubble
construction, snecked to earlier work and coursed to enlargements; freestone dressings to
windows and quoins.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Albert Road - School House

Treasure 2284
Monument [ ~ OSGrdE

Listed Bullding ¥/ 13.03.01 | 13338 g§GridN 172038

The school was first built in 1876 and greatly enlarged in early C20 with some classical
detail. The front blocks are arranged as a U-shaped group with boys and girls Halls and
classrooms separated by the central School House, set back behind front garden. Rubble
construction, snecked to earlier work and coursed to enlargements; freestone dressings to
windows and quoins. Tiled roofs, overhanging eaves and brick chimney stacks; square-
pane glazing.

20



‘Penarth

Penarth - Alexandra Park

Treasure 926
Monument [ - OSErMdE
Listed Building " [ o

Well preserved Edwardian public park in an attractive location overlooking the Bristol
Channel, retaining its layout and many of its original features.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Alexandra Park - Alexandra Lodge

Treasure 548

Monument N | 0S Grid E
Listed Building ' [  0SGridN

Alexandra Lodge built between 1904-1910, first occupants James Rees, head gardener.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Alexandra Park - Cenotaph

Treasure 928

Monument [ | 0SGrdE 318743
Listed Building 13.05.00 [ 13340 O0SGrdN 171468

Designed by Sir W Goscombe John RA, and unveiled on Armistice Day, 11 November,
1924. White granite stepped obelisk set on shallow mound with inset steps.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Alexandra Park - Dingle Bridge

Treasure 930

Monument N | 0S Grid E
Listed Building ' [  0SGridN

- V 1) T Z g g
NI
& 58 g s O

Swimming Pool
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This pretty little reinforced concrete bridge shows continental influence in the design of the
supporting arch and generally the economic use of the material from which it is
constructed. A little gem but in need of sensitive refurbishment without delay.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Archer Road - Number 20

Treasure 871

Monument [ | 0SErdE 318035
Listed Building 13.06.00 [ 13341 0SEridN 171167

Two storeys plus ample attics. Red brick ground floors with some bathstone dressings
(painted), upper floors half-timbered with red fish-scale tile hanging; slate roofs. Central
chimney in red brick. Centre of composition has two boldly projecting semi-octagonal bays
with splayed hipped roofs at attic level; horned sash windows (small-pane in upper sashes);
fish-scale tiling to front and sides.

‘Penarth ‘
Penarth - Archer Road - Number 22

Treasure 2280
Monument [ oSG

Listed Bullding /' 13.06.01 H 13342 ggGriN 171165

BM41.07;

~

Two storeys plus ample attics. Red brick ground floors with some bathstone dressings
(painted), upper floors half-timbered with red fish-scale tile hanging; slate roofs. Central
chimney in red brick. Centre of composition has two boldly projecting semi-octagonal bays
with splayed hipped roofs at attic level; horned sash windows (small-pane in upper sashes);
fish-scale tiling to front and sides.

23



‘Penarth

Penarth - Archer Road - Number 24

Treasure 872

Monument [ | 0SErdE 318055
Listed Building 13.07.00 [ 13343 0SEridN 171155

Two storeys plus ample attics. Red brick ground floors with some bathstone dressings
(painted), upper floors rendered with some pargeting; half-timbering to Victoria Road; red
fish-scale tile hanging; main roofs in artificial slate; tall red brick chimney stacks; red tiled
roofs above ground floor projections.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Archer Road - Numbers 23 and 25

Treasure 873

Monument - OSErMdE
Listed Building ' [  OSEridN
g, W :

Two lovely examples of houses designed by Penarth architect J.Coates Carter. See also
Cefn Bryn, 13 Clinton Road. Built in C19. First occupants were Miss Mackintosh (25) and
T.S.Tregelles (23).

24



‘Penarth

Penarth - Arcot Street - Former St. Joseph's Church and School

Treasure 912

Monument [ . 0SGridE

listod Buliing | | |

1334LS LODHY.

Church with attached school is built of local coursed rubble with Bathstone facings to
opening dormers and belltower. There are some features notably the circular window where
red Radyr stone is used as an additional embellishment. Converted to residential use.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Beach Road - The Kymin

Treasure 549

Monument N | 0S Grid E
Listed Building ' |  OSGridN

H

The original Kymin House was built 1790's on the site of a previous farmhouse. C17 farm
owned by Gwenllian Evans, the farm could well have been called Worbeys Fote in the C13.
The present Victorian house stands in a dingle formed by glacial movement and has an
active stream.

25




‘Penarth ‘

Penarth - Castle Avenue - Cwrt-y-Vil Grange (and Later Wall)

Treasure 896

Monument [ . 0SGridE

Listed Building 13.09.00 [ 13346 0S Brid N 1170234

v ~ A
5 o

Remains consist of shell of barn range with attached room to W, aligned roughly E-W, into
which have been inserted C20 garages and outhouses (replacing C19 stables).

‘Penarth

Penarth - Church Avenue and Clive Place - Telephone Call-
Box at Corner

Treasure 2287
Monument [ . 0SGridE

Listed Buling ' 131100 13348 QSGridN 171831

3 LANE

42

CLIVE PLACE

1€

S A/ S

E Il R, K6-type square, red kiosk of cast-iron construction to the standard design of Giles
Gilbert Scott, architect of London. Design introduced by GPO in 1936; this example
manufactured by Carron and Company, Stirlingshire.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Cliff Parade - 'Sea Roads'

Treasure 2390

Monument | - OSErMdE

Listed Building 13.40.00 87494

Designed by the architect Gordon H. Griffiths, of Cardiff for John Gibbs esq. in 1939.
Strong modernist idiom constructed in reinforced concrete with brickwork piers and metal
window detail throughout.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Clinton Road - Number 13 - Cefn Bryn

Treasure 882

Monument N | 0S Grid E
Listed Building ' |  OSGridN

Coates Carter house built C19; the house when built was the only house in Clinton Road.
The street directory of 1903 shows the occupier as J.H. Westyr-Evans, a solicitor.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Cornerswell Road - Victoria Primary School

Treasure 915

Monument | - OSErMdE
Listed Building ' |  OSGridN
§ = 3[]
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Built of red brick with bathstone string courses, copings and finials, it shows a symmetrical
face to Cornerswell Road and features a series of cross gables. The central gable is
emphasised by the incorporation of the circular panel in stone supporting a cross and
vertical stone motif, terminating in the finial.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Esplanade - Edwardian Terrace and Seacot

Treasure 544

Monument [ . 0SGridE

- “»

Listed Building ' [  OSEridN

Splendid Edwardian terrace, built 1904, designed and built by Frederick Speed, who came
from Shepton Mallet, arriving in Penarth during 1886. He was brought to Penarth by his
uncle J. Kyle Collet, Beach Road number 5, millionaire and philanthropist (Collet paid for
the children's paddling pool, now gone, on the foreshore). Speed also built the Lansdowne
complex and during the 1920's his uncle, Mr Collet, at his own expense, founded,
organised and ran as president The Children's League of Peace and Goodwill at number 2,
Plymouth Road, part of the Lansdowne complex.

28



‘Penarth

Penarth - Esplanade - Former Public Baths Building

Treasure 546

Monument [ | 0SErdE 318901
Listed Building 13.15.00 [ 13352 0SEridN 1171379

Jacobean style with its main frontage in two parts: on left, towered entrance block fronting
the (former) small pool; on right, basilican facade to the (former) large pool. Blue lias
facings. Dressings of Bath stone and yellow brick, red sandstone string courses, artificial
slate roofs. Octagonal tower with diminishing stages, ogee (leaded) dome, swagged frieze.
Strap work panels over first floor. Heavy angle volutes flank 'Public Baths' tablet. Converted
to residential use.

‘Penarth ‘

Penarth - Esplanade - Italian Gardens

Treasure 2466

Monument [
listed Buling [ |
.

. OSGridE 318880

Despite modern additions a well preserved Edwardian-style public urban garden in a fine
setting on the sea front. The garden was designed principally as a rock garden and retains
its original layout and structural planting. Listed Grade Il in Register of Landscapes, Parks
and Gardens of Special Interest in Wales.
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Penarth - Esplanade - Italian Gardens, Public Shelter

Treasure 543

Monument ~ OSGridE
Listed Building |  0SGridN

Mud g Shiige

The beach shelter was built 1885/6 on a man-made tump. During 1885/6 it was leased from
the Windsor Estate by J. Moore and Sons, who ran it as 'Refreshment Rooms'. By the
1890's it was advertised as 'Refreshment Rooms and Bazaar' run by Mrs H. Moore, one
assumes the widow of J. Moore. By the 1900's it had become the Penarth Shelter and
Pavilion.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Esplanade - Mediterraneo

Treasure 542

Monument [ oSG

Listed Building —

An old boat house built in the grounds of Sea-Cottage. The ministers of the Penarth Urban
District Council show that the Surveyor, "... Reported that a boat house was being erected
by the Admiralty on the Esplanade, contrary to the provisions of the Public Health Act of
1875..." Numerous publications erroneously claim the building was Penarth's first lifeboat
home.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Esplanade - Penarth Pier and Pavillion

Treasure 545

Monument [ | 0SGrdE 318986
Listed Building 13.18.00 [ 13355 0SEridN 171328

""" 7

Built in 1894 with the pavilion completed in May 1929, when the landward end of the pier
was rebuilt in concrete. Further rebuilding following ship collision in 1947. Approximately
200m long, and 15m wide at landing stage end. Central section on cast iron piles with
wooden decking, landward and landing stage ends have concrete piles and decking.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Esplanade - Penarth Yacht Club

Treasure 541

Monument [ | 0SGrdE 318848
Listed Building 13.16.00 [ 13353 0SEridN 1171077

Two storeys. Rear wall of red brick with white brick lacing course at eaves. Front and
sidewalls with (painted) roughcast cladding to ground floor and stucco upper floor and
attics. Slate cladding to roofs, enlivened in front pitch by attic gables of varying shapes.
Red ridge and crest tiles and terracotta finials. Front elevation with balconied veranda of
seven (first floor) and eight (ground floor) bays; supported on fluted twisted cast-iron
columns with Corinthian capitals.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Marine Parade - Number 2 - Coastguard Cottage

Treasure 932

Monument [ | 0SGrdE 318696
Listed Building 13.19.00 [ 13376 0SEridN 171077
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Late Georgian, 2-storey house for officer of coastguards built of snecked local rubble with
freestone quoins, gable parapets with kneelers and window dressings. Slate roof and
yellow brick chimney stacks with red brick cornice bands. Former watch tower to rear (on
Tower Hill), although this is much altered and converted to residential use. Also, rocket
shed and carriage house at southern end of access lane from Holmesdale Place. See also
Coastguard Cottages on Tower Hill Avenue (1074-1078).

‘Penarth ‘

Penarth - Marine Parade - Number 3 and Number 4

Treasure 1221
Monument [ ~ OSErdE

listed Buling [ |

Built in the mid 1880's possibly to design by H.C. Harris and H. Snell, who both worked for
the Windsor Estate (who built Marine Parade).The first occupant of number 3 was William
Benjamin Gibbs, ship owner and also owner of a large ship chandler's and sail making
business. The first occupant of number 4 was J.A. Lee a master mariner and ship-owner.
Resided with his family plus a cook, nurse, housemaid.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Marine Parade - Number 7

Treasure 1220
Monument ~ OSGAdE

Listed Building ' [  0SEridN

uuuuu

Built mid 1880's. First occupant was Edward England a potato importer of a large scale.
England's original warehouse still stands at the North end of the old Bute West Dock,
Cardiff (since converted to residential). England was infamous for using Irish women as
stevedores at his wharf and warehouse. England shared the home with his wife, children
and four live-in servants.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Marine Parade - Number 8

Treasure 1219
Monument [ oSG

Listed Building ' [  OSEridN

Built in 1885, to designs by H. Snell, Windsor Estate architect to augment the Windsor
Town Plan of 1878. First occupant G. George Grain, Corn Merchant from County Derby.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Marine Parade - Number 9

Treasure 1218

Monument [

 OSGRdE 318669

listod Buliing | | |

 OSERidN 170928

Built in the 1880's with a splendid baronial entrance. The first occupant was Mrs Shirley.
The home was built on a large, filled in pond, one of the many ponds that marked the
Penarth plateau, pre-urbanization. To the rear of number 9, the stable and coach house
complex have been tastefully converted to living accommodation.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Marine Parade - Number 10

Treasure 1217

Monument []

 OSGRidE 318648

listod Buliling | | |

~ OSGridN
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Built in the mid 1880's, first occupant as yet unknown. Samuel Hern, solicitor took up
residence C1890. In about 1920 W.E. Hinde ship-owner bought the house.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Marine Parade - Number 12

Treasure 1215
Monument  * ~ OSGridE

Listed Building ' |  OSGridN

dti/[/

This is an interesting design by Seddon and Coates Carter, architects, 1896. Well provided
for outdoor relaxation by means of verandas and balconies as a shield against the full glare
of the summer sun. Formerly with half timbering in gable.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Marine Parade - Number 13

Treasure 874
Monument [] | 0SGridE 318620
Listed Bullding /' 13.20.00 | 13356 Q§GridN 170767

&

Built 1888 in a French Renaissance style a pair of semi-detached villas with asymmetrical
plan contrived to give impression of single large house. Two storeys plus attics; grey stone
with bathstone copings, dressings and slate roofs; yellow brick chimneys and foundations
of bay windows.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Marine Parade - Number 14

Treasure 2281
Monument ~ OSGAdE

Listed Building 13.20.01 [ 13357 0SErid N (170758

Built 1888 in the French Renaissance style. One of a pair of semi-detached villas with
asymmetrical plan contrived to give impression of single large house. Two storeys plus
attics; grey stone with bathstone copings, dressings and slate roofs; yellow brick chimneys
and foundations of bay windows.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Marine Parade - Skomer

Treasure 1502
Monument - OSErMdE

Listed Building ' [  OSEridN

Built as a private residence for a ship-owning family before conversion to residential home
for the elderly. Arts and Crafts style with Cotswold influences.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Paget Place - Headlands School and Stable Buildings

Treasure 557

Monument [ | 0SErdE 318981
Listed Buling ' 1321.00 13358 QSGridN 172194
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Built 1868 as 'Penarth Hotel' by Taff Vale Railway Company. Four storeys over basement;
seven bays. Two attached parallel blocks with lower block to left. Grey stone (rusticated
basement), bathstone dressings, quoins, copings, some banding and quoins in Radyr stone
and red brick, course of blue bricks below cornice. Slate roof; prominent chimneys in red
brick with yellow brick banding on bases of blue-grey bricks.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Paget Place - Northcliffe Cottage

Treasure 556

Monument ~ OSGAdE
Listed Buiing H ~ OSEridN
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Built as the lodge for CIiff Villa, latter built 1840's and later became North Cliff in the late
C19. Cliff Villa Lodge was also later renamed to Northcliff Lodge. It was not shown on the
Waring's map of 1808, but appears on maps of the 1870's, this plus the design suggests a
building date approx 1870. One notable resident in 1880's was Shadrach Alfred Smith, later
to start the Smith dynasty at Cogan Hall Farm.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Plassey Street - Bethel Chapel

Treasure
Monument

Listed Building —
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Late C19 Chapel in neo-classical style. Three storeys paired pilasters on either side of
large balcony window and pediment. Hipped, slated roof.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Plassey Street - Holy Nativity Church

Treasure 2473

Monument [ |
listod Buliling | | |

0SGrid f 317962

1894, Gothic style chapel with bell tower. Constructed in local stone with bathstone
dressings. Nave and roof destroyed by fire bombs, 1941. Restored in 1952.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Plassey Street - Tabernacle Baptist Church

Treasure 910

Monument O | 0S Grid E
Listed Building ' |  OSGridN
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Substantial Chapel in neo-classical style, with central pediment over 3 balcony windows.
Modern two storey extension to front following remodelling in 1989.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Plymouth Rd - Number 2

Treasure 2289
Monument [ | 0SGrdE 318561
Listed Bullding ¥/ 13.22.02 | 13359 0§ GridN

©
School

Dating from 1886, part of an imposing composition of nine bays, three storeys (four to
centre bays) on basement. Grey brown Pennant stone with bathstone dressings (C16
Flemish style relief's in pediments); with half-timbering to second floor; slate roofs (some
replacement), yellow and red brick chimneys and quoins. Neo-classical single storey
banking hall extension to front.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Plymouth Rd - Number 4

Treasure 2290
Monument ~ OSGAdE

Listed Bullding ¥/ 13.22.04 | 13360 Q§GridN 171532

Dating from 1886, part of an imposing composition of nine bays, three storeys (four to
centre bays) on basement. Grey brown Pennant stone with bathstone dressings (C16
Flemish style relief's in pediments); with half-timbering to second floor; slate roofs (some
replacement), yellow and red brick chimneys and quoins.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Plymouth Rd - Number 6

Treasure 2291
Monument ~ OSGAdE

Listed Building 13.22.06 [ 13361 0SEridN 171518

9

Dating from 1886, part of an imposing composition of nine bays, three storeys (four to
centre bays) on basement. Grey brown Pennant stone with bathstone dressings (C16
Flemish style relief's in pediments); with half-timbering to second floor; slate roofs (some
replacement), yellow and red brick chimneys and quoins.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Plymouth Rd - Number 8

Treasure 2292
Monument ~ OSGAdE

“—School a36m TY

Listed Building 13.22.08 [ 13362 0SErid N 1171498

3

Dating from 1886, part of an imposing composition of nine bays, three storeys (four to
centre bays) on basement. Grey brown Pennant stone with bathstone dressings (C16
Flemish style relief's in pediments); with half-timbering to second floor; slate roofs (some
replacement), yellow and red brick chimneys and quoins. 8 and 10 form one building.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Plymouth Rd - Number 10

Treasure 2293
Monument - OSErMdE

Listed Bullding ¥/ 13.22.10 | 13363 Q§GridN 171490

d

Dating from 1886, part of an imposing composition of nine bays, three storeys (four to
centre bays) on basement. Grey brown Pennant stone with bathstone dressings (C16
Flemish style relief's in pediments); with half-timbering to second floor; slate roofs (some
replacement), yellow and red brick chimneys and quoins. 8 and 10 form one building.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Plymouth Road - The Railway Hotel Public House

Treasure 1207
Monument [ . 0SGridE

Listed Building ' [  0SGridN

Built on the site of an early building, the Clive Club and Refreshment Room, owned by Mr
Jefferies. The present pub built C1890, first landlord a MR W.J. Bond. The pub an unusual
design in the Penarth context has been described as an 'elephantine cottage orne'

‘Penarth

Penarth - Plymouth Road - Turner House Art Gallery

Treasure 919

Monument O] | 0SEridE 318509
Listed Building 13.23.00 [ 13664 0S Brid N 1171409

g

Built 1888 as gatehouse to 'Roxburgh’ (demolished) with first floor museum for owners' art
collection. Built of red brick with moulded brick string courses and dentil cornice; red
sandstone detailing in Italianate early Renaissance style; red tiled roof with longitudinal
light. Projecting arched centre bay with a plain semi-circular panel with painted inscription
‘Turner House Gallery'.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Raisdale Road - "Raisdale"

Treasure 891

Monument ~ OSGAdE
Listed Building ' [  0SGridN
#i { i y ¥
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A fine 19th Century House built for Lewis Turnbull in the 1880s. The Turnbull's were a pre-
eminent maritime family from Whitby. Formerly Raisdale Hotel, now converted to flats and
extended.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Raisdale Road - Modern House

Treasure 892
Monument ~ OSGAdE
Listed Building

| H ~ OSEridN

This award winning house (RIBA Regional Awards 2000) by local architect Loyn and Co. is
a C21 take on the modern house as developed in the 1920s by foremost European
architects like Le Corbusier and Mies Van de Rohe.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Rectory Road - The Old Rectory

Treasure 899

Monument [ . 0SGridE

Listed Building
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0SGridN 171631

It would appear that the first incumbent was Rev. James Evans, who died in 1862.
Alternatively, Rev. Charles Parsons was in residence by 1863. Parsons held the living of
Penarth with Lavernock. Parsons was followed by the well remembered Revd William
Sweet-Escott.By the 1920s the Rectory had been converted into separate residences.
Reputedly constructed on the axis of the St. Augustines Church to the North East.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Redlands Road - Numbers 47 and 49 and Earl
Road - Number 1

Treasure 1342
Monument [ . 0SGridE

Listed Building ' |  OSGridN
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Group of Arts and Crafts style houses by well known local architect J. Coates Carter.
Complex and clever plan turns corner between roads.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Royal Buildings East and Station Approach, Off
Stanwell Road

Treasure 917

Monument [ . 0SGridE

Listed Building ' |  OSGridN

Westoba
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Designed and built by local entrepreneur F. Speed. Impressive terrace of three stories with
dormers to roof; projecting shop fronts with balconies and continuous balustrading; Half
timbering to second floor; slated roofs, clay tile hanging; substantial red brick stacks. British
Legion club on Station Approach also of group significance.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Royal Buildings West, Off Stanwell Road

Treasure 923

Monument ~ OSGAdE
Listed Building ' [  OSEridN
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Designed and built by local entrepreneur F. Speed. Impressive terrace of three stories with
dormers to roof; projecting shop fronts with balconies and continuous balustrading; Half
timbering to second floor, slated roofs, substantial red brick stacks. Provides a lively and
consistent impression of this shopping area leading to the railway station on Station
Approach.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - St. Augustine's Place - St. Augustine's Church

Treasure 880

Monument [ oSG

Listed Building 13.10.00 [ 13347 0SEridN 172041

Outstanding example of a Victorian Gothic Church by renowned architect William
Butterfield, in spare Early English style with distinctive saddleback tower. Chancel with
South transept organ chamber and North vestry over boiler room; aisled nave with SW
saddleback tower and NW porch. Leckwith limestone facings, bathstone dressings and
bands, red Staffordshire tiles, some Radyr stone shafts. Interior contains pronounced
patterns of diaper brickwork.

‘Penarth

Penarth - St. Augustines Place - St. Augustines Church -
Penarth Churchyard Cross (Inside Church)

Treasure 2300
Monument 21/1811/GM227 (GLA) | 0SEridE 318848

listed Buling [ |

Scheduled Monument - in 1982 a socket stone, holding a shaft-stump, 0.3m high, was left
upon the recent base, the remainder of the restored monument having been removed into
the Church.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - St. Augustines Place - St. Augustine's Churchyard -
Joseph Parry Memorial Stone

Treasure 881

Monument [ . 0SGridE

Listed Building ' [  0SEridN

U

]

Joseph Parry, popular and productive Welsh composer (b. 1841, Merthyr Tydfil) one of the
town’s most celebrated residents; composed at least ten operas, seven of which were
completed whilst resident in Penarth. At the same time, one of his sons, J.Haydn Parry
wrote three light romantic operas. Died 1903.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Stanwell Road - Public Library and Former Cottage

Treasure 920

Monument [ | 0SGrdE 318536
Listed Building 13.25.00 [ 13366 0SErid N 1171594
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Built 1904-6 in the Free Jacobethan style to design by H. Snell. Comprises main 2-storey
and basement range of rubble masonry laid in thin courses and with partially dressed
quoins and stringcourses; freestone frontispiece and clock tower on main range and also to
window dressings and gable parapets throughout. The composition is dominated by the
square tower set into the extruded corner beside the main entrance.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Stanwell Road - Stanwell Road Baptist Church

Treasure 937

Monument [

0SGridf 318318

Listed Building —

. OSERidN 171425
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Baptist Church designed in 1895 in Gothic style. See also Sunday School Rooms (921)

‘Penarth

Penarth - Stanwell Road - Telephone Call-Box

Treasure

2204
Monument []

0SGridf 318478

Listed Building ' 13.24.00

13365

0SGridN 171463
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E Il R, K6-type square, red kiosk of cast-iron construction to the standard design of Giles
Gilbert Scott, architect of London. Design introduced by GPO in 1936; this example
manufactured by Carron and Company, Stirlingshire.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Stanwell Road - Trinity Methodist Church

Treasure 916

Monument [ | 0SGrdE 318195
Listed Building 13.26.00 [ 13367 0SEridN 171517
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Non-conformist church with impressive spire in C19 version of Perpendicular Style. Church
in grey-brown stone with bathstone dressings, slate roofs, some shafts in polished granite.
Hall in grey stone with bathstone dressings (rear elevation has dressings and quoins in
yellow brick). See 2295.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Stanwell Road - Trinity Methodist Church Hall

Treasure 2295
Monument - OSErMdE

Listed Builiing ' 13.26.01 13368 QSGridN 171524

1

Non-conformist church with impressive spire in C19 version of Perpendicular Style. of grey-
brown stone with bathstone dressings, slate roofs, some shafts in polished granite. Hall in
grey stone with bathstone dressings (rear elevation has dressings and quoins in yellow
brick). Upper floor reconstructed in recent years following major fire.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Stanwell Road - Washington Gallery

Treasure 903

Monument [ - OSErMdE
Listed Building ' [  0SEridN

The Washington Cinema was opened on April 4th, 1938, by Lt. Colonel J.H.R Downes-
Powell, who was chairman of the Penarth Urban District Council who resided at 'the
Lindens', Bradford Place. The cinema was designed by Penarth architect H. Teather.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Stanwell Road - Washington Hotel Complex

Treasure 902

Monument [ . 0SGridE

listod Buliling | | |

Washington Flats built as numbers 18 and 19 Stanwell Road, 1880's in design by H.
Blessley, renumbered 9 and 11, 1900. Number 9 became the Penarth Tutorial College
1905, run by Mr. Jones who had the school at number 2 Albert Crescent. At number 11 was
A.J.H Boyton, physician and surgeon.During 1917-19 both houses were a Military Hospital.
In 1921 number 9 was occupied by Oliver Willmore and number 11 by Captain W.H.
Beaven. During October 1922 Beaven opened the Washington Hotel having converted the
two houses. In 1929 it was advertised as the Washington Hotel (Private) and Restaurant.
During the 1930's the Willmore brothers, Laurence and Oliver turned the hotel into flats.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Stanwell Road- West House

Treasure
Monument
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listod Buliing | | |
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Late Victorian mansion of local stone with bathstone dressings. Now offices of Penarth
Town Council.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Station Approach - Telephone Call-Box

Treasure 2296
Monument [ | 0SErdE 318399
Listed Building 13.26.00 [ 13369 0S Grid N
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E Il R, K6-type square, red kiosk of cast-iron construction to the standard design of Giles
Gilbert Scott, architect of London. Design introduced by GPO in 1936; this example
manufactured by Carron and Company, Stirlingshire.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Tower Hill - Coast Guard Storage Building

Treasure 1349
Monument [ . 0SGridE

Listed Buiing H ~ OSEridN

er Hit| avene

F e

A unique building in the context of Victorian architecture in Penarth. There isn't another
building of this size and design in the town. Its position, proportions (especially the small
window) suggests it was used to store explosive charges - the coastguard rocket apparatus
house that contained the rocket carriage (pulled by men in harness) and mortars was
further up the lane. Kept separate for safety reasons!

‘Penarth ‘

Penarth - Tower Hill - Coastguard Look-out Tower

Treasure 934

Monument [ . 0SGridE

listod Buliing | | |

Converted to residential use with contemporary extension but still able to see original tower.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Tower Hill - Coastguard Rocket Carriage House

Treasure 1501
Monument ~ OSGAdE

Listed Building ' [  0SEridN

Simple structure built in limestone with ashlar quoins and padstones in bathstone. An attic
window in the gable illuminates the roofspace and the main opening is elaborated with a
rubble and ashlar segmental arch.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Tower Hill Avenue - Number 1

Treasure 1074
Monument - OSErMdE

Listed Building 13.29.01 [ 13371 0S Grid N
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Built ca 1840 by the Admiralty for the Coastguard staff. Late Georgian, 2-storey houses
built of snecked local rubble with freestone quoins, gable parapets with kneelers and
window dressings. Slate roof and yellow brick chimney stacks with red brick cornice bands.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Tower Hill Avenue - Number 2

Treasure 1075
Monument | - OSErMdE

Listed Bullding ¥/ 13.29.02 H 13372 gggridN 171076
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Built ca 1840 by the Admiralty for the Coastguard staff. Late Georgian, 2-storey houses
built of snecked local rubble with freestone quoins, gable parapets with kneelers and
window dressings. Slate roof and yellow brick chimney stacks with red brick cornice bands.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Tower Hill Avenue - Number 3

Treasure 1076
Monument [ - OSGrdE

Listed Building 13.29.03 [ 13373 0SEridN 1171078

HOLMSDAL EpLACE

Built ca 1840 by the Admiralty for the Coastguard staff. Late Georgian, 2-storey houses
built of snecked local rubble with freestone quoins, gable parapets with kneelers and
window dressings. Slate roof and yellow brick chimney stacks with red brick cornice bands.

54




‘Penarth

Penarth - Tower Hill Avenue - Number 4

Treasure 1077
Monument ~ OSGAdE

Listed Bullding /' 13.29.04 H 13374 g§griN 171077

HOLMSDAL EpLACE

Built ca 1840 by the Admiralty for the Coastguard staff. Late Georgian, 2-storey houses
built of snecked local rubble with freestone quoins, gable parapets with kneelers and
window dressings. Slate roof and yellow brick chimney stacks with red brick cornice bands.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Tower Hill Avenue - Number 5

Treasure 1078
Monument - OSErMdE

Listed Building 13.29.05 [ 13375 0SEridN 1171077

HOLMSDAL EpLACE
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Built ca 1840 by the Admiralty for the Coastguard staff. Late Georgian, 2-storey houses
built of snecked local rubble with freestone quoins, gable parapets with kneelers and
window dressings. Slate roof and yellow brick chimney stacks with red brick cornice bands.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Victoria Road - Baptist Church Sunday School

Treasure 921

Monument N | 0S Grid E
Listed Building ' | ~ OSGridN
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The Sunday School pre-dates the actual church. The school rooms were built in 1885 to
designs by architects Jones, Richards and Budgen and stood in West House Road. A
temporary church / chapel was built in Stanwell Road until the present church was built
1895/6.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Victoria Road - Number 20

Treasure 877

Monument [ . 0SGridE

listed Building ¥ 133100 |

House of two storeys plus ample attics, by well known local architect J. Coates Carter. Red
brick ground floors with some bathstone dressings (painted), upper floors half-timbered with
red fish-scale tile hanging; slate roofs. Central chimney in red brick. Centre of composition
has two boldly projecting semi-octagonal bays with splayed hipped roofs at attic level;
horned sash windows (small-pane in upper sashes). Fish-scale tiling to front and sides.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Victoria Road - Number 22 (St.Margarets)

Treasure 2282
Monument [ . 0SGridE

Listed Bullding ¥/ 13:31.01 | 13379 g§GridN 171231

Built in free Arts and Crafts style, by local architect J. Coates Carter. Two storeys plus attic.
Rendered first floor above red brick ground floor; slate hipped gable roof, prominent red
brick chimneys.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Victoria Road - Number 25

Treasure 870

Monument [ . 0SGridE

Listed Building ' 13.32.00
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25 Victoria Road, together with 24 Archer Road, form a pair of non-identical semi detached
villas. The buildings are of two-storey height but have a third floor of habitable
accommodation within the roof space. Built primarily of Lias limestone with Bathstone
dressings and half timbering at upper floor, the properties present a large frontage to both
Victoria Road and Archer Road. (See also 872).
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‘Penarth ‘

Penarth - Victoria Road - Number 60 (The Red House)

Treasure 876

Monument [ | 0SErdE 317952
Listed Bullding /' 13.33.00 | 13380 §GridN 170904

Eclectic Arts and Crafts style by J. Coates Carter as his own home. Featuring Swiss
accents (Carter's wife was Swiss). Grey stone plinth, red brick walls with roughcast render
(painted); some weatherboarding. Red tiled roof, turrets, and oriels. Tall red brick chimneys.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Victoria Road - Paget Rooms

Treasure 900

Monument [] | 0SEridE 318337
Listed Bullding /' 13.30.00 | 13377 Q§GridN 171410
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Eclectic hall by J. Coates Carter of roughcast render (painted) over brown glazed brick
plinth. Upper storey has row of seven small pane casement windows with small round
window to left. Parapet above.Central main entrance consists of low round arch flanked by
lonic columns with exaggerated capitals. Paired glazed wooden doors with multi-paned
transom. Above arch, pair of small-pane casement windows flanked by aedicules enclosing
cartouches.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Victoria Square - All Saints Church

Treasure 922

Monument [ . 0SGridE

Listed Building —

This building originally designed by Seddon and Carter in 1889 was burnt out in 1926 and
repaired by Carter. It was then bombed in the Second World War and restored by Sue
Perry Thomas and Son. During the course of these events the original design lost the
original roof form and also the fleche and the bell turret. It is constructed with pennant
coursed sandstone and ashlar facings.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Victoria Square - All Saints Church Hall

Treasure 935

Monument [ | 0SErdE 318202
Listed Building 13.34.00 [ 13381 0SEridN 1171319

[

Original and outstanding church hall by J. Coates Carter (1906) with possible influence of
American architect H. H. Richardson. Snecked rubble masonry with steep Roman-tile roof,
overhanging eaves and blue brick chimney stacks; small-pane glazing throughout. The
main front has open-fronted Italianate loggia, central entrance and round stair tower to
right; behind is a foyer with flanking service rooms and the whole is contained under one
cross roof that joins the main roof just below the apex with gallery window.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Westbourne Road - Number 75

Treasure 897

Monument [ . 0SGridE

= =

Listed Building ' | ~ OSGridN

Late C19, built of red brick with a slate hipped roof. Bathstone is used for the lintels,
mullions and sills to door and window openings, the lintels are curved. Featuring an
unusual faux church tower marking the entrance, giving a remarkable prominence to the
house.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Windsor Gardens - Gardens and Bandstand

Treasure 1324
Monument [ . 0SGridE

listod Buliing | | |

A well preserved late Victorian public park which was originally laid out not only for the
benefit of the general public but also of the villas that were built adjoining it, all of which
originally had private access to the gardens. The park is in a maginificent position on the
cliff top and has remained substantially unaltered. Listed Grade Il in Register of
Landscapes, Parks and Gardens of Special Interest in Wales, it features an excellent
bandstand.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Windsor Gardens - North Lodge (Pier Master's Lodge

Treasure 2286
Monument ~ OSGAdE

Listed Building 13.08.00 [ 13345 0SErdN 171331
)| c

T

Single storey plus attic built of red pressed brick with moulded brick cornice and frieze; pale
stone sills; hipped roof in banded red and brown tiles. Compact plan with central chimney
stack with moulded brick cornice. Central projecting bay with hipped two-window dormer to
attic.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Windsor Gardens - South Lodge

Treasure 540

Monument ~ OSGAdE
Listed Buidting ' H  OSEridN

Lord Windsor directed H. Snell to design and lay out the Windsor Gardens. The first
section, Bridgeman Road to the path from the Coastguard Barracks, opened in 1880. A
lodge was built at the north entrance and the public were charged one penny for entry. A
bridge laid across the dingle at the southern end of the gardens opened in 1881, when the
South Lodge was also provided.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Windsor Road - Lloyds TSB Bank building

Treasure 904

Monument O] | 0SEridE 318513
Listed Bullding /' 13.16.00 | 13383 Q§GridN 171756

Built in 1898 as one block together with the Windsor Arcade in the Free Classical style,
ashlar fronted 3-storey block with channelled ground floor; slate roof with yellow brick
chimney stacks. The bays on the main front are slightly narrower than on the Windsor
Arcade but the strong horizontal emphasis in the design is repeated by continuing the
cornices and deep bands between the floors.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Windsor Road - Windsor Arcade

Treasure 879

Monument [ | | 0SGrdE 318498
Listed Bullding /' 13.35.00 | 13382 Q§GridN 171766
A \ ~ S

b

Dated 1898; designed by Edward Webb as development for Solomon Andrews, the Cardiff
entrepreneur, on Plymouth Estate land, previously occupied by a large farm. Contemporary
with the building of the main arcades in Cardiff. Initial occupants of the Arcade shops
included, fronting Windsor Road H William's Premier Restaurant and the Temperance
Hotel.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Windsor Terrace and Rectory Road - Royal Mail Post
Box

Treasure 924

Monument [ - OSErMdE
Listed Buidting ' H ~ 0SEridN

Early C20 GR post box set in stone wall.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Woodland Place - Woodland Hall

Treasure 878

Monument [ | 0SGrdE 318189
Listed Building 13.37.00 [ 13384 0SErid N 1171561
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Former Church to design by J. Coates Carter in free Arts and Crafts style; slate roof,
pebble dash first floor, red brick ground floor with bathstone banding and dressings. L-
shaped plan with main frontage facing roughly south. Two gables face street and each has
a large round-arched multi-paned window. Right hand gable has overhanging bell housing.
Now converted to residential use.
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‘Penarth

Penarth - Wordsworth Avenue - St. Joseph's Presbytery

Treasure 914

Monument [ . 0SGridE

Listed Buiiding ¥/ 13.39.00 13336

Substantial two-storey presbytery. Central block with cross gables to ends. Slate roof,
roughcast render, exposed stone quoins, bathstone dressings and sills. Three round-
headed windows on first floor, four on ground floor. Central section has four square-headed
windows at eaves (asymmetrically placed). On ground floor shallow round-arched porch
with original entrance door.

‘Penarth

Penarth - Wordsworth Avenue - St. Joseph's Church

Treasure 913

Monument O] | 0S GridF 318000
Listed Building 13.38.00 [ 13385 0SGrdN 171789

Plans date from 1913, but construction interrupted by First World War and church in
present form not completed until late 1920's. Basilican plan with aisled nave, North and
South transepts, sanctuary at East end with flanking apsidal chapels. Walls in grey-brown
stone with rendered panels and bathstone dressings; slate roofs.
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‘Penarth

Penarth Dock - Custom House Building

Treasure 554

Monument [ | 0SGrdE 318848
Listed Building 13.13.00 [ 13350 O0SGrdN 172496

Built 1865 in the Wrenaissance style. 2-storey plus attic 5-bay symmetrical front with central
bell tower and advanced pedimented end bays. Yellow brick with bathstone dressings,
rusticated ground floor and red brick left side elevation; slate roofs; yellow brick
chimneystacks. Plinth, sill band and overall plain entablature with heavily moulded eaves
course. Swagged lonic coupled pilasters to outer bays containing bracketed pedimented
windows.

‘Penarth

Penarth Dock - Marine Building

Treasure 555

Monument ] | 0SEridE 318934
Listed Building ' 13.14.00 [ 13351 QSGriN 172429

Built circa 1865 as 'Marine Hotel' in the French Renaissance style. Three-storey and attic,
wide symmetrical domestic block, yellow brick facings with bathstone dressings and red
rusticated plinth. Slate roof (now partially removed), with French pavilion roofs to ends with
ornamental railings, mid roof parapets with brick chimneys. 15-window front divided into 5
sections of 3-window, squat second floor pilasters support roll-moulded eaves cornice,
raised segmental dormer-heads with twin lights to centres of bays.
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